Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income

(comprising of loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises

the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Directors’ report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. When we read the Directors’ report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

a

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

11. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

63

(8)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph 11(h)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) (“the
Rules”). Further, in the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to verify whether
the backup of books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has been
maintained on a daily basis on servers physically located in India during the period April 2023 to
December 2023.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specifiedunder
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 11(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 11(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
AV

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2024, for which there were no material
foreseeable losses. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2024;
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There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

Note 47 (vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
Note 47 (vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstaterment.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software
which has the feature of recording audit trail (edit log), except for changes made through specific
access at application level and for direct database changes. During the course of performing our
procedures, except for the aforesaid instances of audit trail not maintained at application and
database level, where we are not able to comment upon, we did not notice any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.

12. The Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration during the year and accordingly,
reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

.ﬂe.\m Budrmom

Sonika Burman

Partner

Membership Number: 504839
UDIN: 24504839BKAUTJ6857

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Jaypore E-
Commerce Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
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company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7/c

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial staterfients,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026 E/E-300009

it B

Sonika Burman

Partner

Membership Number: 504839
UDIN: 24504839BKAUTJ6857

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books
of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

i.

ii,

iii.

@

(b)

]

(d)

(e)

(a)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by
the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

The Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer Note 3(a) to the financial
statements). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change,
if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on (or) are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the
question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in
the financial statements does not arise.

The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with
third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on
physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate
for each class of inventory and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of account.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,

(a)

(b)

in aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed quarterly
returns or statements with such bank, which are in agreement with the unaudited books of
account (Also, refer Note 47(ii) to the financial statements).

The Company has made investments in one company. The Company has not granted secured/
unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any
parties.

In respect of the aforesaid investments, the terms and conditions under which such investments
were made are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.
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()

iv.

vii. (a)

(b)

viii,

ix. (a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

®

The Company has not granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans to any
parties. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(c) to (f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

N
The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred
in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of provident fund, professional tax, labour welfare fund and employees’ state insurance
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including income tax, goods and services tax and other material statutory dues,
as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest to any lender during the year.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.
(Also, refer Note 47 (xiii) to the financial statements)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
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x. (a)

(b)

xi. (a)

(b)

(c)

Xii.

Xiil.

Xiv.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12)
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to us by
the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party
Disclosure” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to
constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, the
reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and based on our examination, though the Company is required to have an
internal audit'system under Section 138 of the Act read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, there is no internal audit system established for the year.

It our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi){a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the

year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has eight
CICs as part of the Group as detailed in note 47 (xii) to the financial statements. We have not,
however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate

and complete.

xvii.  The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 2,928.22 lakhs in the financial year and of Rs.

2,620.54 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the

reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

Xix. On the basis of the financial ratios (refer Note 50 to the financial statements), ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when

they fall due.

XX. The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included

in this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Sonika Burman
Partner

Membership Number: 504839
UDIN: 24504839BKAUTJ6857

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024



Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN: U51900MH2012PTCg22224

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

0 As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3(a) 2,220.95 1,995.80
Right-of-use assets 4 5,930.67 6,611.77
Capital work-in-progress 3(b) 260.92 216.87
Other intangible assets 3(c) 186.50 29.50
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 4.25 -
(ii) Security deposits 6 787.26 637.13
(iii) Other financial assets 7 259.01 -
Deferred tax asset (net) 8 3,559.66 3,231.46
Non current tax asset 9 3n 5.20
Other non- current assets 10 36.39 4.65
Total non- current assets 13,249.32 12,732.38
Current assets
Inventories 11 3,927.55 3,171.68
Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 12 183.92 107.55
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 1,355.57 89.01
(iii) Security deposits 14 11.35 3.98
(iv) Other financial assets 15 7.22 9.95
Other current assets 16 2,940.26 1,921.32
Total current assets 8,425.87 5,303.49
Total Assets 21,675.19 18.0&87
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 17 1,636.54 1,469.87
Other equity 18 (1,061.07) 2,272.32
Total Equity 575.47 3,742.19
Liabilties
Non- current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 937.50 a
(ii) Lease liabilities 19 5,438.19 5,834.53
(iii) Deposits 74.61 .
Employee benefit obligations 21 247.83 242.27
Other Non Current Liabilities 22 9.28 *
Total non- current liabilities ©.707.41 6,076.50 |
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 9,228.52 4,785.00
(ii) Lease Liabilities 29 1,375.89 1,208.28
(iii) Trade payables 25
e’:“t::::)g:et:tandmg dues of micro enterprises and small 32511 322.01
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and sria]l enterprises 2,838.75 1,399.05
(iv) Other financial liabilities 26 122.32 58.31
Employee benefit obligations 27 268.86 225.54
Other current liabilities 28 232.86 218.69
Total current liabilities 14,392.31 8,216.88
Total equity and liabilities 21,675.19 18,035.87
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009 Ja E-Commerce Private Limnite
As Dikshit
Director
DIN: 01842066
Place: Mumbai
Date:May 22, 2024 Date:May 22, 2024
o Qusnrow e
D e
N
Sonika Burman Amit Dwivedi Rajeev Agrawal
Partner Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary
Membership Number 504839 PAN: AHAPD2074Q M.No.: A18877

Place: Mumbai
Date:May 22, 2024 Date:May 22, 2024

Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbai

Date: May 22, 2024




Jaypore E-C ce Private Limited

CIN: U51900MH2012PTC422224

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i Year ended Year ended
Earticnlars Notes March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations 29 7.959.47 7,587.24
Other income 30 250.30 159.24
Total income 8,209.77 7.746.48
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 31 79110 982.19
Changes in inventories of work in progress, stock in trade and finished goods 32 (755.87) (1,513.63)
Purchase of stock-in- trade 33 3,517.48 3,842.10
Employee benefits expense 34 2,625.68 2,465.19
Finance costs 35 1,380.60 546.63
Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 2,517.74 1,773-74
Other expenses 37 4.161.42 4.453.36
Total expenses 14,238.15 12,549.58
Loss before tax (6,028.38) (4,803.10)
Income tax expense: 38
Current tax - =
Deferred tax (329.56) (1.203.61)
Total tax expense (329.56) (1,203.61}|
Loss for the year (5.698.82) (3.599.49)
Other Comprehensive income
Items that will not to be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plan 48 33.46 3371
Income tax effect (1.36) (8.48)
Total other Comprehensive income, net of tax 32.10 25.23
Total Comprehensive income for the year (5,666.72) (3,574.26)
Earnings per equity share [Nominal value of share Rs. 10 (March 31,
2023 : Rs. 10)] 39
(1) Basic (38.72) (24.49)
(2) Diluted (38.72) (24.49)

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Bogrron

Sonika Burman
Partner

Membership Number 504839
Place: Gurugram
Date:May 22, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

or
DIN: 01842066
Place: Mumbai
Date:May 22, 2024

)}

Chief Executive Officer

PAN: AHAPD2074Q
Place: Mumbai
Date:May 22, 2024

ce Private Li

Chief Financial Officer &

@te:May 22, 2024

A OAS
jeev Agrawal

Company Secretary
M.No.: A18877
Place: Mumbai
Date:May 22, 2024




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited
CIN: U51900MH2012PTC422224

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

5 Year ended March | Year ended March

Particulars 31,2024 31,2023
Laoss before tax (6,028.38) (4,803.10)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,517.74 L773-74
Finance cost 1,380.60 546.63
Interest income - (0.48)
Loss on sale of praperty, plant and equipment 0.64 0.41
Net fair value gain on financinl instruments st FVTPL (18.63) -
Gain on termination of leases (108.46) -
Unwinding, of interest income on security deposit (61.09) (34.50)
Linbilities | provisions no longer required written back = (Brog)
Gain on sale of current investments (qg.21) (312
Operating profit before working capital changes (2,366.79) (2,631.66)
Change in working capital
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables 76.37) (57.51)
Increase in inventories (755.87) (1,513.63)
Increase in other current assets (1,018.94) (836.18)
Increase in other financial assets and security deposits (334.07) (2BE.67)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables 1,442.80 (1,107.38)
(Decrease)/Increase in other liabilities and deposits 97.06 {16.57)
Incréase in Employee benefit obligations B2 158,
Cash generated from operations (2,929.84), (6,253.01)
Income taxes paid (net of refund) 1.49 (0.31)]
Net cash flows used in operating activities (2,928.35) (6.253.32)
Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for Property, plant and Equipment (1,298.65) (1,048.86)
Payments for purchase of investments (6,008.62) (6,895.02)
Proceeds from sale of investments 6,057.83 10,748.80
Investment in subsidiary (4.25) -
Interest received | (9.22)}
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (1,203.6¢ 2,795.70|
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares 2.500.00 -
Proceeds from borrowings 6,681.02 5,610.97
Repayment of borrowings (1,500.00) (825.97)
Payment of lease liabilities (1,101.82) (809.19)
Interest on lease liabilities (643.51) (443.32)
Interest on borrowings (735.69) (104.41)
Interest paid - others {:.qg)‘{ (0.03)|
Net cash flows from financing activities 5.398.60 3:428.05)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1.266.56 (29.57
Cash and cash equivalents a1 the beginning of the year 89.01 118.58)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1.355.57 89.01
Non Cash investing activities

- Acquisition of right-of- /{ 981.57 4,228.21
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand (refer note 13) 0.78 124
Balances with banks: (refer note 13)

- On current accounts 1,343 55 74.02
Balance with e-wallet companies (refer note 13) 1. 13.75
Total cash and eash equivalents 1.355.57 89.01

Notes:

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect metho

1

ion with the

The above statement of cash fiows should be read in conj

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 304 026E/E-300009

Sonika Burman
Partner

Membership Number 504839
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2024

panying notes.

e
S

Chief Executive Officer

PAN: AHAPD2074Q
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

d as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows”

Date: May 22, 2024

oo A

Chief Financial Officer &
Company Secretary
M.No.: A18877

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024
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Jaypore E-C ce Private Limit
CIN: U51900MH2012PTC422224
Statement of change in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of % 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up No. of Shares Amount

As at March 31, 2022 1,46,98.626 1ﬁ62.82
Shares issued during the year = =
As at March 31, 2023 1.46.98.626 1 .8
Shares issued during the year 16,66,667 160.67

As at March 31, 2024 |I6316§i222 1.&6.2

B Other Equity
Attributable to the equity holders
Reserves and surplus
Particulars — - - Total other equity .
Securities Premium Retained
(Refer note 18) earnings
(Refer note 18)

As at March 31, 2022 15,604.31 (9,757.73) 5,846.58
As at April 01, 2022 15,604.31 (9,757.73) 5,846.58
Loss for the year - (3,599.49) (3,599.49)
Re-measurement gain on defined beniefit plan - 25.23 25.23
As at March 31, 2023 15,604.31 (13,3391.99 2,272.32
As at April 01, 2023 15,604.31 (23,331.99 2,272.32
Shares issued during the year 2,333.33 - 2,333.33
Loss for the year - (5,698.82) (5,698.82)
R gain on defined henefit plan - 32,10 32.10
As nt March 31, 2024 17.037.64 (18,998.71) (1.061.07)

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009 ; A

Place: Mumbaij

v @\W Date: May 22, 2024 : Mayd2,
\%m)“* W N

Sonika Burman Amit Dwivedi Rajkev Agrawal

Partner Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary
Membership Number 504839 PAN: M.No.: A18877

Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 22, 2024 Date: May 22, 2024 Date: May 22, 2024




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1.

Corporate information

Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited (the “Company”), a private limited company domiciled in India,
is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company
is shifted from B-64, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase 1, New Delhi — 110020 to Piramal Agastya Corporate
Park, Building ‘A’, 4th and 5th Floor, Unit No. 401, 403, 501, 502, L.B.S. Road, Kurla, Mumbai-400070.

The Company deals in linen, readymade garments, textiles, coated fabrics, jewelry and also accessories.
Also, the Company provides marketplace and business support services to other business.

The financial statements have been approved and adopted by the Board in their meeting held on May
22, 2024.

2, Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following which
have been measured at fair value:

e Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.
(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended certain accounting standards (see
below), and are effective 1 April 2023:

* Disclosure of accounting policies — amendment to Ind AS 1

* Definition of accounting estimate — amendment to Ind AS 8.

 Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction — amendments to
Ind AS 12

The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods. Specifically, no changes would be
necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company’s accounting policy
already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

(iv) Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of Financial Statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the results of operations during the reporting
period. The actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur,

(a) Employee benefit plans

The present value of the gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discounting rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discounting rate. In determining the appropriate
discounting rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government
bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change
only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are
based on expected future inflation rates.

(b) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits.

As at March 31, 2024, the Company has accumulated tax losses of Rs. 10,656.93 Lakhs (March 31, 2023:
Rs. 6,852.18 Lakhs) carried forward as per income tax records of the Company.

(¢) Provision on inventories

The Company provides for inventories based on policy, past experience, current trend and future
expectations of these materials depending on the category of goods.

(d) Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew or terminate the
lease. It considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise
or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

(e) Going concern

The management of the Company, based on the financial projections, is confident that the Company's
sales would grow, and profitability would improve. Further, Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited
(Holding Company), confirming its financial and operational support to the Company for its continued
operations in future, which will permit it to discharge its liabilities, as and when they fall due, and
continue to operate as a going concern. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared by
the management assuming going concern which contemplates realization of assets and settlement of
liabilities in the normal course of business.




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(v) Functional and Presentation Currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (%) which is the functional currency of the
Company. All amounts are rounded to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

(vi) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN: Us1900MH2012PTC422224

Notes to financial statements for the yesr ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in € Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

1 1ored d

Property. plini and equij are alated ad hi less and lossif any Historical cost

includes expenditure that is dirvedy attributable io the acquisition of the items,

Subyequent coonts ane includiod in the wssels camying amounl or recognisdd s 3 aeparale avel, as apprropriate. unly when it bs probable that
future econamic benefits wssuciated with the item will Bow to the Company, and the coat of the itvm can be meavured reliably, The carrying
amount of apy companent accounted for as a separate assel is de-rocognived when replaced. All other ropairs abed maintenanee ave charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss, during 1be reporting period In which they are incurrvd.

D ! hod L] d useful lives and residusl value
Degreciation oy property. plist abd squipsient is caleulated on @ straighi-line basis over the welul life of the assel estimated by the mansgrment
Depreciation on additinns ided on a pro rata hasis from the month of installation or itk Dlepreciation en deletions/ i Ls is
provided on s pro raka basks uplo the month proceding the month of deletionsf disposals. The munagement belioves that these eatimated uicful
Tives are neabistic and reflect fair approximation of the pesivd over which the auets sr likely to bee usedd Thie Company has wsed the falhndog
rates 1 pronide depreciation oo ils tangible fived suets:

(a) Asscts where useful life is same as Schedule I1

Anscls Useful life sy preseribied by Schedule 1ol the
Comniu Act, 30y

Office equipmoni’s Iﬁl\‘m

(b) Assets where useful life differ from Schedule I

Assets Useful life as prescribed by Schedule Ik of the |Estimated uaeful life

Compnnles Act, 2013

Fumnilure and fxhuncs - motail 1o years 5-6 years

stores

Furniiure and fxiures - other 10 years 7 ycars

than retail stores

Compulers vears for end user devices and 6 years for servers Jvars

Elecirical filtings, installations |10 years 5 years

and equipaient’s

Useful life of assets different from Lhat ibed in Schedule 11 hus been esti d by the supported by technical assessmenl

Leasehold Assets

Assels Useful life us preseribed by Schedule 11 of the
('omennlm Act, 201

Leaschold impratements af siins £ 10,6 years or period of lease, whichiver i lower

Leaschold improviements other than slores Perod of lease

Interiors have been treated as part of leaschold improvemenls, Therefore, useful life shall be based on period of lease.

Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing less than five thousand rupees, are deprecialed within one year from Lhe date the
assel is ready 1o use.

Gains or lasses on dispail of property, plant and equi are d ined by ing proceeds with camrying amoual. These are included in
the Statement of Profif und Loss within olber gains/ losscs.

Tl residual vahiacs, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
stfjated peaspectively, if appropriate.

Purticulars Leasehold Electrical Fumiture | Office & Studio | Computers Total
Improvments equipments and fixtures equipment
Coat
Ax sl Murch 3, wovasn 600.01 312,08 763.57 22.88 165.95 TR
Add: Adelitbong 469 70 176 81 12313 139 58 111 90 1,041.12
Less: Dispopals 0.21 - - 051 - 0.72
Ax st March 55, soagy 1,070.40 8a.7a 886,70 226.95 297.85 2.971.69
Akl Aadditierns 476.50 27523 206.39 4854 20.75 1,027.41
Limss: [H - - . = - -
A wt March 31, zo2g 1,546.90 765.02 1,093.09 275.49 318.60 3:999.10
Acoumulated Depreciation
As ul March 53, sozs 149.05 48.62 01.58 21.89 56.81 a77.95 |
Akl Dypreciation charge for the 207.61 117,58 18466 3505 53.35 508.25
Mear
L Dinpersale 0.05 . . 0.26 - 031
As st March 31, su2y 6.61 166.20 276.24 66.68 110,36 975.89
Add: Depreciation eharge for the 244.33 152.37 2068 By 6454 72.21 80226
yoar
Lews: [Hapisals
As ul Murch 31, zozg 600.94 318,57 545.05 3122 18z.37 1,798.55 |
Net block
At March 41, 202y 945.96 446.45 pali.ng 134.27 10,25
As at March 31, 202y it e hio.46 iho.ay FLXT)

Note: Th Company has nnt rvsalied its property, plant and cquipment.




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN: Us1900MH2012PTC4a2224

Notes to financial statements for the yesr ended March g1, 2024
{All amounts are In ® Lakha, unless otherwise stated)

3(b) Caplital work-In-progress

Lesa than 1-2 years 2-3 yeurs Maore than g Total
year years

L8 - - - a6 7
Leas than 1 1-2 years 2-3 yeurs Muore thun 3 Totul
year years

Hiogz = = = 22

e Intungible nspets

Intangible assels are stated a1 cost less accumulaled amortisation and impairment.

Intangible ursets are b the useful lifee anid assessed for fmpabrmenl, Whenss thire b= un indication that the iotangible
aszet may be impaired. The smostisation period and the istion methad for an i ible axsnt with a wseful life are reviewed al least al the
end of each reporting period. The liation expense on | ible axsets s din the Statement of Profit and Loss,

G o losses atising frum d ition of an i ible asset are Fas the diffe between the net disposal proceeds and the

canyiig amoil of the assel and are recognised in 1he Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Amortiastion methods and perdods

A 2 ity ped e ayllend b0 thwe Company’s intangible assets is as belows

Intungible Asscts [Useful life [Amortisation method used

s 5

Particulars Computer

Software

Canl

As ut March 51, 2023 PR

A Additins Apla

Less: Disposals -

As at March 31, 2023 213.Hq

Add: Addifinns Touhi

Lesa: [Hy 1o -"9"“-'.

Ax ul March 3. oy 4z3.065

Aceumulated Depreciation

As at March 1, 3023 11,

Amartisalion for the year S0.80

Asut March 31, z0zy 18309

AmeoHiction far IMM 52.81

As at March 31, 2024 6.5

BNt hlock

As i Murch 3y, wowy (103
urch 31, aos; —ﬁ

Holw: The Campany has not nevalued s inGnpible st




Jaypore E-C ce Private Limited

CIN: U51900MH2012PTC422224

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ® Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4 Right-(zf-use asset

Atinception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Company assess whether:

= The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the
capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

* The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

* The Company has the fight tn direct the use of the asset. The Company has the right when it has the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and
for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision aboul how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the C pany has the right to
direct the use of the nsset either the Company has the right to operate the asset; or the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what
purpose it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Where the Company Is the lessee

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date except for short-term leases which are less than 12 months and leases
oflow value assets, The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any initial direct costs incurred less
any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
useasset or the end of the lease term. If ownership of the leased assel transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the evercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those
of property. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lease liabilities
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.

1

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of fixed payments, including in- fixed pay s. The lease liabilities are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is o modification arising due to change in the lease term, change in the lease payments or a
change In the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-ol-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property, and lease liabilities, separately in the Standalone Balance Sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-lenm lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.¢:, those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date ond do not contain a purchase option), It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognilion exemption to leases that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-valle assels are recognised a5 expense on a stralght-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantiolly all the risks and rewards of ewnership of an asset is classified as an operating lease. Assets subject to

operating leases are included in the property, plant and equipment. Rental income oh an aperating lease is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognised as an expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Right to use assets (refer note 41) 5,930.67 6,611.77
{otal : __5,930.67 6,611.77

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and movements during the year
Buildings

As at March 31, 2022 3,488.25
Addition 4,228.21
Less: Amortisation expense 1,104.69
As at March 31, 2023 6,611.77
Addition 981.57
Less: Amortisation expense 1,662.67
As at March 31, 2024 5,930.67
Asat As at

Investments

Non-current
Investments in wholly owned Subsidiary

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
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11 Inventories

=3

" . As at As at
6 Security deposits March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 787.26 637.13
787.26 637.13
q As at As at
7 Other financial assets Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-current
Net investment in sublease 250.01
.01 -
8 Deferred tax assets (net) As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Deferred tax assets (net) 3.559.66 3.231.46
_5:559.66 3,23046_
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Tax losses and | Depreciation
Particulars unabsorbed and ll::pact ofndAs Siiﬁn‘e;ti’:eneﬁt Others Total
depreciation |amortisation Ba
As at March 31, 2022 1,848.88 43.78 69.36 75.37 (1.06)] 2,036.33
{Charged)] Credited
- to statement of profit and lass 96244 8717 99.48 | 4337 .35 1.203.61
- to other comprehensive income = < i (8.48) B (8.48)
As at March 31, 2023 2,811.32 130.95 168.84 110.06 10.2 3.231.46
(Charged)/ Credited =
- to statement of profit and loss 278.09 2513 23.69 4.42 (.77) 329.56 |
- to other comprehensive income (135) {1:36) |
As at March 31, 2024 3,089.41 156.08 102. 113.12 8.52 2,550.66
9 Non current tax assets (net) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income tax recievable 3.7 5.20
a7 50
10 Other non-current assets As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances 36.39 4.65
'46,32 4‘b§

Raw materials, components, stores and spares, and packing materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined on weighted

average cost basis.

Traded goods, work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. Cost is determined on weighted

average cost basis.

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Finished goods 1,298.97 275.21
‘Work-in-progress 107.34 897.47
Stock-in-trade 2,521.24 1,999.00

3,927.55 3,171.68
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12 Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customiers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflect the Company's
unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time).

Trade réceivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The Company holds the trade
receivables with the objective of callecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less loss allowance.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses

to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade receivables from others 138.2¢9 8528
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 42) 82.79 59.43
Less: Loss allowance (37.16) (37.16)

183.92 107.55
Break-up of security details

Trade receivables

Considered good, secured

Considered good, Unsecured 183.92 107.55

Considerd good - Secured

Trade receivables, which have significant increase in credit risk = -

Trade receivables - credit impaired 37.16 37.16
221.08 144.71

Impairment allowance

Considerd good - Unsecured

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit sk

Less: Loss allowance (37.16) (37.16)

183.92 107.55

Aging of trade receivables
As at Mlarch 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from duc date of pay (If pay date not availuble then date of trunsaction)
Particulars R
o
Unbilled Not Due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 1-2 years A 3 Total
\Indispuled Tradc receivables
= vonsidered good - - 183 92 - - B - 183.92
TWhicl Bave SignIicAt incroase Tn : - ’
eredit risk
- erwdil impaired = % E . . = 37.16 37.16
183.92 . - - 3716 221.08
Less: Loss allowance - - - - - - (37.16) 37.16)
Total Trade receivables - - 183.92 - - - - 183.92
As at Blarch 31, 2023
Outstunding for following periods from dur dute of [ date not nvallahile then date of trunasction)
Particul More th
S Unbilled Not Due Less than 6 months |6 months - 1year  |1-2 years ey Morethand [ fotul
Undispuled Trade receivables
- considered good - . 107.55 - - = # 10755
= which hawe signiican! increase in 5 = -
credii risk
= ereddit impalred - - - - - - 3716 3716
. 107.55 - . - 37-16 14471
Less: Loss allowanie = = = - = - (37.16) (37.16)
Totsl Trade receivables - ~ 107.55 - B . = 107.55

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.
Trade reccivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 days.

The Company creates allowance for all trade receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss model (ECL). The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security.
Based on the evaluation made by the management, expected eredit loss reversed in the current year is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023: 1.62
Lakhs).

\‘\_p\!{ AAC.g5

Ga —
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As at As at
13 Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with bank:
-On current accounts 1,343.55 74.02
Cash on hand 0.78 124
Bal with Tiet i 1124 13.75
L355:57 S0
Asat As at
14 Security deposits March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 1.35 308
11.35 3.9
As at As at
15 Other financial assets March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employee Advance 7.22 9.95
7.22 9.95
As at As at
16 Other current assets March 31,3024  March 31, 2025
Unsecured, considered good unless other wise stated
Balance with government authorities 2,355.40 1,627.75
Prepaid expenses 22,13 40.03
Right to recover returned goods (refer note 28) 34.76 7.62
Advance to creditors
~Considered good 527.97 245.92
-Considered doubtful 32.78 32.78
Less: All for doubtful ad (32.78) (32.78)
527.97 245.92

M 1.921.32
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17 Share Capital

a)

b)

c)

Authorised share eapital No. of Shares Amount
Equity shares of 310 each

As at March 31, 2022 1,65,00,000 1,650.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 1,65.00,000 1,650.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 1,65,00,000 1,650.00
Preference shares of ¥ 10 each

As at March 31, 2022 15,00,000 150.00
Increase during the year = =
As at March 31, 2023 15,00,000 150.00
Increase during the year i = =
As at March 31, 2024 15,00,000 150.00
Issued share capital No. of Shares Amount
Fully paid up

i) Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued and subscribed

At April o1, 2021 61,37,055 613.71
Increase during the year 85,61,571 856.16
As at March 31, 2022 1,46,98,626 1,469.87
Increase during the year = =
As at March 31, 2023 1,46,98,626 1,469.8
Increase during the year 16,66,667 166.67

As at March 31, 2024 1!6§!6§£223 lgﬁgs.g

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par valie of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

Shares held by Holding Company
AsatMarch  As at March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited 1,63,65,287 1,46,98,620
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number % Holding Number % Holding
Equity shares
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail 1,63,65,287 100.00% 1,46,98,620 100.00%
Limited
1,6g;6§5287 100.00%  1,46,98,620 100.00%
e : 5% ."_;}:“"
/ ——l




Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN: U51900MH2012PTC422224

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

d) Details of shareholding of Promoters

Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2024

% of total % Change
Name of the Promoter No. of Shares| numbers of | during the
shares year
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited 1,63,65,287 100.00% 0.00%
Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2023
% of total % Change
Name of the Promoter No. of Shares| numbers of | during the
shares year
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited 1,46,98.620 100.00% 0.00%
€) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash
AsatMarch  AsatMarch
31,2024 31, 2023
Equity shares issued pursuant to conversion of Compulsory convertible preference 10,91,338 10,91,338
shares.
18 Other Equity
As at March As at March
31,2024 31, 2023
Securities premium 17,937.64 15,604.31
Retained earnings (18,998.71) (13.331.99)
Total (1,061.07) 2,272.32
Securities premium
As at March 31, 2022 15,604.31
Premium on issue of shares =
As at March 31, 2023 15,604.31
Premium on issue of shares 2,333.33
As at March 31, 2024 17,937.64
Retained earnings
As at March 31, 2022 (9,757.73)
Loss for the year (3,599-49)
Re-measurement Profit on defined benefit plan 25.23
As at March 31, 2023 (13,331.99)
Loss for the year (5,698.82)
Re-measurement Profit on defined benefit plan 32.10

As at March 31, 2024

(18!228.2)
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19 Lease liabilities

Non Current
Lease liabilities

The following is the lease liabilities movement for year ended:

Balance at beginning of the year

Additions during the year

Finance cost incurred during the year (refer note 35)
Payment of lease liabilites (net of gain on
termination of leases)

Balance at end of the year

Non Current (Refer note 19)
Current (Refer note 24)

20 Non Current Borrowings

Term Loan from bank (Secured)*

Less: Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer note 23)

As at

As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

5,438.19

5,834.53

——Z:43830 583453

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7,042.81 3,623.79
9B1.57 4,228.21
643.51 443.32
-1,853.81 -1,252.51
6,814.08 7.042.81
5,438.19 5,834.53
1,375.89 1,208.28
6,814.08 7,042.81
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,500.00 .
(562.50)
937.50 :

* Term loan of Rs. 1,500 lakhs has taken from ICICI Bank which is secured by First Pari-Passu charge on entire current assets and
receivable and Second Pari-Passu charge on movable property of the Company. The Loan is disbursed to meet the working capital
requirements. The loan is repayable in eight quarterly installment starting from July 10, 2024. The rate of interest is 1 year Marginal Cost

of Funds-based Lending Rate (MCLR).

21 Employee benefit obligations

Non-current
Provision for gratuity (refer note 48)

22 Other Non Current Liabilities

Deferred Income

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
247.83 242.27
247.83 242.27

As at As at

March 31, 2024

Murch 31, 2023

9.28

9,28
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23 Borrowings

Asat Asat
Current March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loan from the related party (Unsecured)* 5,932.00 1,500.00
Working Capital Demand Loan (Secured)** 2,734.02 3,285.00
Current maturities of long-term borrowing (Secured) (Refer note 20) 562.50 -

9,228.52 4,785.00

* The loan has been taken from the Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited (Holding Company). The loan is for short term period,
therefore, there will not be any significant difference in fair value and carrying amount of loan taken.The Loan has been taken to meet Lhe
working capital requirements and is repayable on demand. The rate of interest is 6 months Marginal Cost of Funds-based Lending Rate
(MCLR) + 0.25 % spread per annum. There is no default in repayment of loan installments or payment of interest thereon as per the
terms and conditions of loan taken. The Company has used the funds for the specific purpose for which it was taken.

**Working capital loan consists of Loan from Axis Bank and ICICI Bank. The details of the same is as follows:

Working capital Demand Loan of Rs. 1,994.02 lacs has taken from Axis Bank which is secured by First Pari-Passu charge on entire
current assets and movahle property, plant and equipment of the Company. The Lean is disbursed to meet the working capital
requirements. The loan is repayable in four tranches due on different dates in Financial vear 2024-25. The rate of interest is 3 months
Marginal Cost of Funds-based Lending Rate (MCLR) + 0.50 % spread per annum.

Working capital Demand Loan of Rs. 740 lacs has taken from ICICI Bank which is secured by First Pari-Passu charge on entire current
assels and second Pari-Passsu charge on movable property, plant and equipment of the Company. The Loan is disbursed to meet the
working capital requirements, The loan is repayable in two tranches due on different dates in Financial year 2024-25. The rate of interest
is Repo rate plus 1.95% spread.

There is no default in repayment of Joan installments or payment of interest thereon as per the terms and conditions of loan taken from
1. The Company has registered/satisfied all the charges whereever required with Registrar of Companies within the statutory period.
2. The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken.

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Net Debt reconciliation

Cash and cash equivalents 1,355.57 89.01
Current borrowings 9,228.52 4,785.00
Non Current borrowings 937.50 >

Lease Liabilities 6,814.08 7,042.81

Net Debt (15,624.53) (11,738.80)

24 Lease liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current
Lease liabilities 1.375.80 1,208.28
1,375.89 1,208.28
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As at As at
25 Trade Payables March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current )
Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises 325.11 322.01
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,838.75 1,399.05
—3:163.86 ,721:06
Aging of Trade Payables
As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment (if payment date not available then
date of tr cti
Particulars
Not due
(Including Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years Moriat:}:n 3 Total
Unbilled) ¥
Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enlerprises 288.81 35.40 0.14 0.25 0.51 325.11
Others 2,461.93 33539 22.64 9.21 9.58 | 2.838.75
Total 2,750.74 370.79 22.78 9.46 10.09 | 3,163.86
As atMarch 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment (if payment date not available then
date of transaction)
Particulars Not due
(Including Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years MorZ::n 3| Total
Unbilled) &
Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 175.23 138.85 6.98 0.95 - 322.01
Others 1,284.51 82.70 16.58 15.26 - 1,399.05
Total 1,459.74 22155 | 23.56 16.21 - 1,721.06
Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2 October 2006, certain
disclosure are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of the information and records
available with the management, there are outstanding dues to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under MSMED Act, 2006.
The following disclosure are required under Section 22 of MSMED Act, 2006 under the chapter of delayed payment to micro and small
enterprises:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31,
/ 2023
Principal amount dueé to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end. 325.11 322.01
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end. Nil Nil
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, bevond the appointed day during the year. Nil Nil
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed Nil Nil
day during the year.
interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Acl, beyond the ~ .
appointed day during the year. Nil Nil
Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the - a1
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act. Nil N
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year. Nil Nil
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure Nil Nil
under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

The above disclosures are provided by the Company based on the information available with the Company in respect

of the registration status of its vendors.
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: As at As at
26 Other financial liablities March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Security Deposit 2.00 2,00
Creditors for capital supplies/ services 112.04 47.03
Employee benefits payable 8.28 9,28
Total 122,32 58.31
As at As at
27 Employee benefit obligations March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Provision for gratuity (refer note 48) 13.98 13.03
Provision for compensated absences 192,92 181.92
Stock Appreciation Rights (refer note 49) 61.96 ° 30.59
Total 268.86 225,

The entire amount of provision of Rs. 192.02 lakhs (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 181.92 Lakhs) is presented a5 current, since the Company does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does nol expect all employees to avail the full amount of
acerued leaves or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months.

Leave obligation not expected to be settled within the next 12 months 176.76 166.16
As at Asat

28 Other current liablities March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advance from customer 68.53 107.35
Refund liabilties* 65.40 14.53
Statutory liabilities 98.93 96.81
Total 232.86 218.69
*Refund liabilities

Where @ customer has a right Lo return 3 product within 2 given year, the company recognises a refund liability for the amount of the
revenue recognised for which the enlity does niol expeet to be enlitled Rs. 65.40 Lakhs { March a1, 2023:- 14.53 Lakhs) . The Company
also recognises right (o vecover the relurned goods for Rs. 34.76 lakhs (March 33, 2023: Rs, 7.62 lakhs), See Note 16, The costs to recover
(he products are not material as the customers usually return them in a saleable condition.
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29 Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods/ services to customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expect to be entitled for those goods/ services.

To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five-step approach:

» ldentify the contract with a customer;

» Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

* Determine the transaction price;

* Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
* Recognise revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of products
Revenue from sales of products is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of returns, customer incentives, discounts, variable consideration
and other similar charges offered by the Company) allocated to that performance obligation.

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company in its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the
seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

A nd liabilities arising from rigt

The Company has contracts with customers which entitles them the unconditional right to return.

Right to return assets

A right of return gives an entity a contractual right to recover the goods from a customer (return to return asset), if the customer exercises its option to
relurn the goods and obtain a refund. The asset is measured at the carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods,
including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabiliti

A refund liability is the obligation to refund part or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer. The Company has therefore
recognised refund liabilities in respect of customer’s right to return, The liability is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have
to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimate of refund lisbilities (and the corresponding change in the trunsaction price) at the end of
each reporting period,

The Company has presented its right to return assets and refund liabilities under other current assets and other current liabilities, respectively.
Other operating revenue
The Company provide the facility of listing the goods of other supplier on the E-Commerce platform of the Company. The Company recognizes revenue

when the orders of goods placed on website of the Company which pertains to other supplier.

Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2024 31,2023

Sale of goods 7,925.40 7/459-39

Other operating revenue 34.07 . 127.85

7.959.47 7,587.24

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2024 31,2023

Revenue as per contracted price 8,024.87 7,601.77

Adjustment for:
Refund liability 65.40 14.53

Revenue as per Statement of Profit and Loss 7:959.47 7:587.24
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30 Otherincome

31

32

33

Interest income

- on Income tax refund

- on fixed Deposit

Unwinding of interest on security deposit

Gain on sale of current investments

Net fair value gain on financial instruments at FVTPL
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back
Gain on termination of leases

Miscellaneous Income

Cost of raw materials consumed

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year
Less: Inventories at the end of the year

Changes in inventories of work in progress, stock in trade and finished goods

Opening inventories
‘Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade

Closing inventories
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories

Purchases of stock-in- trade

Purchase of stock-in- trade
Total

Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31, 2023
- 0.19
- 0.29
61.09 34.50
49.21 33.27
18.63 -
- 81.09
108.46 -
12.91 9.90
250.30 159.24
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31, 2023
791,10 982.19
791.10 982.19
Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
275.21 185.04
897.47 291.50
1,999.00 1,181.51
3,171.68 1,658.05
107.34 275.21
1,298.97 897.47
2,521.24 1,9949.00
3,927.55 3,171.68
(755.87) (1,513.63)
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
3,517.48 3.842.10
3:517.48 3,842.10
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34 Employee benefits expense

35

36

37

Salaries, wages and allowances

Contribution to provident and other funds(refer note 48)
Gratuity expenses (refer note 48)

Staff welfare expense

Provision for stock option plans (refer note 49)

Finance costs

Interest on:

- Lease liabilities

- Borrowings

- Late payment of taxes

Fair value impact on financial instruments at FVTPL

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3(a))
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 3(c))
Amortisation of right-of-use asset (Refer note 4)

Other expenses

Processing charges

Designing charges

Rent

Information technology expenses
Transportation charges
Advertisement and sales promotion
Legal and professional charges (refer note below)
Repair and maintainence

-Building

-Others

Travelling and conveyance

Security expenses

Telephone and Internet expenses
Rates and taxes

Insurance

Printing and stationary

Power, fuel and water charges

Bank charges

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Courier charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Note : Audit remuneration

As auditor:

- Audit fee

- Tax matters

- Other Certifications
Out of pocket expenses

Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
2,403.11 2,246.74
74.08 72.54
64.11 66.07
64.69 52.74
19.69 27.10
2,625.68 2,4065.19
Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
643.51 443.32
735.69 103.28
- 0.03
140 -
1,380.60 546.63
Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
802.26 598.25
52.81 70.80
1,662.67 1,104.69
2,517.74 1,773.74
Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
520.81 739.97
12.10 21.35
54.06 71.81
386.29 283.97
215.08 348.40
928.84 1,446.65
851.90 594.23
240.57 129.23
117.08 78.94
122.69 145.83
235.80 197.12
33.64 29.45
36.98 34.39
46.93 34.81
10.35 10.32
152.05 102.07
130.20 155.20
0.64 0.41
2.51 1.45
62.90 27.76
4,161.42 4.453.36
Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
6.60 6.60
2.00
1.03 0.89
9.63 7-49
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38 Income tax expense

39

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are:

a. Tax expense recognised in statement of profit or loss

Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2024 31, 2023
Current income tax:
Current tax on profit for the year =
Deferred tax:
(Gains)/losses relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (329.56) (1,203.61)
Income tax expense/(credit) (329.56) (1,203.61)

b. Tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income

Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2024 31, 2023
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plan 33.46 33.71
Income tax effect (1.36) (8.48)
Tax expense recognised in OCI 32.10 25.23

c. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:

Year ended March Year ended March

31,2024 31, 2023

Profit before tax (6,028.38) (4,803.10)
Tax credit at India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17% 25.17% 25.17%
Computed tax credit (1,517.34) (1,208.84)
Tax-effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Deferred tax asset not recognized in the absence of reasonable certainty 1,181.80
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible(taxable) in calculating taxable income

-Others 5.97 523

Unabsorbed depreciation

(329.56) (1,203.61)

Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into
Equity shares.

The following reflects the profit and share data used for the basic and diluted EPS computation: Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023

Loss attributable to equity holders for basic earnings (5,698.82) (3,599-49)

Weighted average number of equity shares 147.17 146.99

Basic earnings per share (38.72) (24.49)

Diluted earnings per share (38.72) (24.49)

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in share transactions during the year. There have
been no other transactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial
statements

* Note:-There are no diluted instruments.
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40 Commitments and contingencies

a) Capital Commitment

The Company has capital commitments as at March 31, 2024 of Rs. 224.53 Lakhs ( March 31, 2023: Rs. 212.21 Lakhs ) net of advances.

b) Contingent Liabilities
The Company has no contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2024 ( March 31, 2023: Nil).
¢) Corporate Guarantee
The Company has not given corporate guarantee as at March 31, 2024 ( March 31, 2023 Nil).
41 Leases

The company has entered into agreements for taking on the lease office buildings/stores. Leases of office buildings/stores generally have
lease terms from 5 to 10 years with escalation clauses in the lease agreements.

Year ended March  Year ended March
(i) The amounts reognized in Balance Sheet: 31, 2024 31, 2023
Right-of-use assets (refer note 4) 5,930.67 6,611.77
Lease Liabilities
Non Current (refer note 19) 5438.19 5,834.53
Current (refer note 24) 1,375.89 1,208.28
(ii) The following are the amounts recognized in profit or loss: Year ended March  Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Depreciation expense for right-of-use assets (refer note 36) 1,662.67 1,104.69
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 35) 643.51 443.32
2,306.18 1,548.01

(iii) The Company has used the following practical expedient:
Accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months treated as short-term leases.

(iv) Extension and Termination option:
Extension and Termination options are included in all the contracts of short term lease and both are exercisable at mutual consent of
Lessor & Lessee.

42 Segment information
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
(CODM). The Board of Directors of the Company is identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"), CODM evaluates the
performance of the Company based on the single operative segment for the purpose of allocation resources and evaluating financial
performance.

The Company is domiciled in India. Most of the revenue comes from India. There are no assets held by the Company outside India.
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43 Fair values .
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI __ Amortised _Total Carrying Level1 Level2 Levelg
As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets
Security deposits - - 708.61 798.61 = - =
Trade receivables - - 183.92 183.92 = - =
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,355.57 1,355.57 = = =
Other financial assets - - 266.23 266.23 - - -
Total - - 2.604.33 2,604.33 5 = 2
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 10,166.02 10,166.02 - - -
Lease liabilities - - 6,814.08 6,814.08 - = -
Trade payables = = 3,163.86 3,163.86 - = =
Other financial liabilities - - 122.32 122.32 = = =
Total - - 20.266.28 __ 20,266.28 - = Z
As at March 31, 2023
Financial assets
Security deposits - - 641.11 641.11 - = -
Trade receivables - - 107.55 107.55 - = =
Cash and cash equivalents - - 89.01 89.01 - - -
Other financial assets - - 9.95 9.95 = = =<
Total - i 847.62 ~847.62 = = =
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 4,785.00 4,785.00 - - =
Lease liabilities - - 7,042.81 7,042.81 - - -
Trade payables - - 1,721.06 1,721.06 - = =
Other financial liabilities - - 58.91 58.31 - - =
Total - - 13,607.18 13,6078 = = =

The above table also explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
measured at amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the Financial Statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the Indian Accounting Standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath.

Level 1: Fair value of financial instruments traded in active market is based on quoted market price at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maxiniize the use of abservable market data and rely as littie as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value-an instrument are observable, the instrument is included i level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There are no transfer between levels during the year.
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44 Related party discl =

a. Related parties

Description of relationship

Names of related parties

Holding Company

Fellow subsidiaries with whom the
Company had transactions

Subsidiary
Key t per 1 ("KMP")
b, Tr: ti with related parties

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited

House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
TCNS Clothing Co Ltd

Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
Finesse International Design Private Limited
Jaypore Fashions Inc

Mr. Ashish Dikshit, Director

Mr. Jagdish Bajaj, Director

Mr. Amit Dwivedi, CEO (w.e.f. October 25, 2023
Mr Ullal Scoraj Bhat, CEO (upto May 7, 2023)

Mr. Saurav Shah (CFO) (Upto October 23, 2023)
Mr. Rajeev Agrawal, CFO (w.e.f. October 25, 202

Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-
end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party

recejvables or payables.

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Year ended March

Year ended

Relationship 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
irla Fash i Holding Company
Sale of products 71.37 20.55
Legal and Professional Charges 484.24 265.39
Interest expense 392.54 44.83
Security Deposit transferred 27.00 -
Proceeds of Borrowings 5,932.00 1,500.00
Repayment of Borrowings 1,500.00 -
de P Fellow Subsidiary
Purchase of stock-in-trade 3:52
Jaypore Fashions Ine Subsidiary
Investment in Equity Shares 4.25
Sale of products 9.34 -
divinity C ail Private Limi Fellow Subsidiary
Purchase of Assets 253.82
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.6
TCNS Clothing Co Ltd Fellow Subsidiary
Reimbursement of Expenses 1.20
3 s In i i ' Fellow Subsidiary
Sale of products 0.08 -
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¢. Outstanding balances

The following table provides the closing balances of related parties for the relevant financial year:

lationshi Asat Asat

Relationship Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Borrowings
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited Holding Company 5,932.00 1,500.00
Trade payables
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited Holding Company 96.33 10.99
House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary - 0.55
Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary 200.27 -
Trade receivables
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited Holding Company 72.03 59.43
TCNS Clothing Co Ltd Fellow Subsidiary 1.42 -
Jaypore Fashions Inc Subsidiary 9.34 -
Finesse International Design Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary - -
Ad From C
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited Fellow Subsidiary 46.49 =




Jaypore E-C ce Private Limited

CIN: Us1900MH2012PTC422224

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5.

45 Fi ial risk yjectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, lease labilities, trade payables, bank overdraft, and empl related payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is 1o finance the Company’s operations and to pravide guarantees o supporl its operations. The Company’s principal financial
assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalent that derive directly from its operations, The Company does not enlers into derivalive
transactions.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's
senior management is responsible to ensure that Company's financial risk activities which are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks, which are summarised below.

(i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two
types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as al March 81, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt as at March 31, 2024.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations and provisions.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

(a) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company
has debt obligations with floating interest rates, hence, is not exposed to interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held
constant, the Company’s loss before tax is affected through the impact on borrowings, as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Basis points (%) 0.50% increase | 0.50% decrease | 0.50% increase | 0.50% decrease
Increase/ (decrease) on loss before tax | 4644 (46.14) 23.03 (23.93)

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a
significantly higher volatility than in the prior years.

(b) Foreign currency risk
The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as at reporting date.
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(ii) Credit Risk )

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its bligations under a fi ial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial lnss. To manage this, the
Company periodically assesses financial reliability of customets and other counte rparties, taking into account the finandial condition, current economie trends, and
analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individual risk limits are set and periodically reviewed on the basis of such information. Credit risk from
balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.

The Campany only deals with parties which has good credit rating given by external rating agencies or based on the Company's internal assessment.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such us a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where
loans or receivables have been wrilten off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity Lo attempt to recover the receivable dues where recoveries are
made, these are recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and security deposits)

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed as per the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a
cuslomer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this sesessment. Outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored.

The majority of the sales of the company happens in cash .The Company does not have significant trade recievables. An impairment analysis is perfarmed at each
reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The calculation is based on exchange losses histarical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed below. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low on the basis of past default rates of its customers.

Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no provision is considered.
Reconciliation of Loss allowance on trade receivables :

Amount
As at March 31, 2022 gs.zs
Addition/(Deletion) during the year (1.62)
As at March 31, 2023 37.16
Addition/(Deletion) during the year -
As at March 31, 2024 37.16

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy, Investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each cow.ierparty, Counterparty credit limits are
reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s finance
committee. The limitsare set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterpirty’s potential failure to make
payments.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's financing activities are
managed centrally by mainlaining an sdequate level of cash and cash cquivalenis to finance the Company's operations. The Company has substantial trade receivable
balance which is expected to be recovered within 12 months. The Company also uses cash credit and bank loans as a mode of funding. The Company manages ils
surplus funds centrally by placing them with reputable financial institution with high credit rating and no history of default.

More than 5
Less than 1 year 1to 5 years T Total

As at March 31, 2024
Trade payables 3,163.86 e 3,163.86
Borrowings 9,228.52 937.50 L 10,166.02
Lease liabilities 1,918.63 6,256.52 8,175.15
Other financial liabilities 122.32 - — 122.32

14.433.33 7.194.02 - 21,627.35

A

As at March 31, 2023
Trade payables 1,721.06 . - 1,721.06
Borrowings 4,785.00 - - 4,785.00
Lease liabilities 1,783.83 6,459.29 397.63 8,640.75
Other financial liabilities 58.31 - - 58.31

8.348.20 6.459.20 397.63 15,205.12
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46 Capital management
The Campany’s objective, when managing capital is to ensure the going concern operation and to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,
support the corporate strategy and meet shareholder's expectations. The policy f the Company is to borrow through Holding Company to meet anticipated funding
requirements. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and the requirement of financial
markets.

The capital structure is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, and is monitored by various metrics. Funding requirements are reviewed periodically
with any debt issuances.

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debt {total borrowings and lease liabilities net of cash and cash equivalents)

Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet),

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Net Debt 15,624.53 11,738.80
Total Equity 575-47 3,742.19
Net Debt to Equity 27,15 3.14

The Company has not declared dividend during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
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47 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule IIT

(i) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the entity for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii) Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The statements filed by the entity with banks are in
agreement with the unaudited books of accounts.

(iit) Wilful defaulter
The Company hasn't been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956 during the year.

(v) Compli with ber of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

|
' 2, ‘\

(vi) Compliance with approved s) of arr:
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

(vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

a) The Company has nol advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:

1. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

or

2. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the group shall:

1. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
2. Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(viii) Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been
recorded in the books of account.

(ix) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(x) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property

The Company has chosen cost model forit's Property, Mlant and Eguipment (including right-of-use assets) and Intangible assets, and hence no revaluation was carried
oul for these assels.

(xi) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
(xii) The Group (Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited) has 8 CICs (registered and unregistered) as part of the Group.

(xiii) The borrowings obtained by the company from barks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken
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48 Defined contribution and defined benefit plans

A. Defined contribution plans

(i). Employers' contribution to Provident Fund

‘The Company has defined contribution plan in form of provident fund for qualifying employees. Contributions are made to
provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% of salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to Employee Providend
Fund Organisation (EPFO) registered provident fund administered by the Government of India. The obligation of the Company is
limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the
year towards defined contribution plan is Rs. 71.41 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 68.69 lakhs),

(ii) Employers' contribution to Employee's state insurance scheme is Rs. 2.67 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 3.85 lakhs).

B. Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. Under this plan, every employee is entitled to the benefit
equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service or
retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefit vests after five years of continuous service.

(i) The amounts recognized through Profit and Loss and other compreh ve :

Particulars Year ended March  Year ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023

Gratuity cost charged to profit or loss

Current service cost 44.89 52.43
Interest expense 19,22 13.64
64.11 66.07
Gratuity cost charged to other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gains)/losses (33.46) (3z.71)
(33.46) (33.71)

(ii) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the defined benefit obligation over the
year are as follows:

Changes in the present value of Defined Benefit Obligation(DBO) are as follows :

As at March 31, As at March 31, 2023

2024

Changes in Present value of the obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 255.30 189.61
Current service cost 44.89 52.43
Interest cost 19.22 13.64
Actuarial loss on account of

-Changes in financial assumptions 10.56 (10.90)

-Experience adjustments {44.02) [22.81)
Actuarial loss recognised in OCI (33.46) (33.71)
Benefits paid (24.61) (13.59)
Transfer in 0.47 46.87
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 261.81 255.30

Bifurcation of Closing Defined Benefit Obligation

As atMarch 31, As atMarch 31, 2023

Particulars

2024
Current 13.98 13.03
Non-Current 247.83 242.27

Total 261.81 255.30
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(i) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the company’s plans are
shown below:

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 2023
2024
Discount rate 7.20% 7.50%
Salary growth rate 9.00% 9.00%
Retirement age 62 62
Attrition rate
Upto 30 years 10% 10%
3110 44 years 7% 7%
Above 44 years 2% 2%
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14

(iii) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 Aa at March 31, 2023
Sensitivity level Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount Rate(-/+1%) 38.15 -34.41 37.00 (33.38)
Salary growth rate{-/+1%) -26.23 26.74 (26.16) 26.82
Attrition rate(-/+1%) 2.55 -2.30 1.94 (1.80)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior year. -

(iv) The following represents maturity profile for the defined benefit plan in future years :

Particulars As at March 31, Aa at March 31, 2023
2024

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 13.98 13.03

Between 2 and 5 years 58.19 61.31

Between 6 and 10 years 88.63 75.37

Beyond 10 years 762.65 814.21

Total expected cash flow profile (payments) 923.45 963.92

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 14 years (March 31, 2022: 14
years). Expected contributions to defined benefits plan for the year ended March 31, 2024 is ¥ Nil (March 31, 2023 : % Nil ).

(v) Risk Exposures
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed
below:
Salary Increases: Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in
future valuations will also increase the liability.
Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
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49 Equity Settled share option plan

The r ized in Bal

Particulars

Sheet:

Provision for stock appreciation right (Refer table below)
Total

The T
Particulars

d in St: of Profit & loss

Provision for stock option plans
Total

Stock Appreciation Rights

Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
61.96 30.59
61.96 ac.59.
Year ended March 31, Year ended March

2024 31, 2022
19.69 27.10
19.69 2710

Aditya Birla Fashions and Retail Limited (Holding Company) has implemented SAR- Stock appreciation Rights a share option plan for the members of senior management including of
the Company. The SARs compensation cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over the total vesting year . Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Company before the options

vest. The granting of Stock Appreciation Rights ("SARs”) has been made by the Holding Company to the eligible

Committee app
treated as liability.

d plan as on

1
ploy

of the C
03, 2021. The shares will be issued post payment of consideration to Aditya Birla Fashions and Retail Limited and hence the same has been

, the ion and

ation

A o q Vesting year | Fair Valueof | Asat March 31,2024 |As at March 31,2023
SAR Plan Details Grant Date Vesting Date | Exercise date (In Months) Options (No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)
SAR's- Tranche 3 - 15t Vesting 18-Aug-21 18-Aug-22 18-Aug-25 12 67.66 9.924 2424/
SAR's- Tranche 3 - 2nd Vesting 18-Aug-21 18-Aug-23 18-Aug-26 24 76.79 9.924 2
SAR's- Tranche 3 - 3rd Vesting 18-Aug-21 18-Aug-24 19-Aug-27 a6 72.00 9.924 2
SAR's- Tranche 3 - Bullet Vesting 18-Aug-21 18-Aug-24 19-Auvg-27 36 172.79 10,239 6.030
Total 40,011 13,302
. a . Vesting year | Fair Value of As at March 31,2024 | As at March 31,2023
SAR Plan Details Grant Date Vesting Date | Exercise date (In Months) Options (No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)
SAR's- Tranche 5 - 1st Vesting 5-AUE-2022 5-Aug-2023 5-Aug-2026 12 10271 10.199.00
SAR's- Tranche 5 - 2nd Vesting 4-Aug-2022 3-Aug-2024 §-Aug-2027 24 120.54 10,199.00
SAR's- Tranche 5 - ard Vesting 4-Aug-2022 4-Aug-2025 4-Aug-2028 36 us.§8 = 10,199.00
SAR's- Tranche 5 - Bullet Vesting 1-Aug-2022 1-Aug-2025 1-Aug-2028 a6 22388 = 25,197.00
Total - .00
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50 Financial ratios

As ut Asat Reason for variance
Particulars Numerator Denominstor oM March 91,2024 | March 31, 2023 % variance (where varlance ls more than 25%)
Current ralio (Current assets [(Current liabilities (excluding Times 0.65 0.76 {14.46%)| This is due to borrowings taken by 1be
Lease Liabilities accounled as Cornpany during the year ended March 33,
per Ind AS 116) 2024,
ekl Erpuity Halin [Total debt excloding Lease F‘quiry Times 16.04 128 1154.16%| Due to fresh borrowings & Equity
‘Eﬂbﬂim infusion
[T Serviee Coverage mtio  Harnipg for debit servioe « Nel Debl service = Inlerest and [Times (0.73), (0.94) (23.129) | Thiz i duc 10 inerease in Iaterest
profit afler laxes + Non-cash | principal repayments including kexpenses and leas paymenl obligation in
operaling expenses liFe lease payments year ended March 31, 2024 as compared
depreciation and other lo previous year.
[nmoriisations + lnterest ¢ other
adjustments liFe Joss on sale of
PPXE.
Ieturn on Equily rutio Loss for (he year Average Equily Percenlage -263.98% -65.10% (198.88%)| Thin it om sceount of increased Joss
during the year.
Inventory Turnover ralio Hevenuoe from operations Average inveniories [ Times 2.24 314 {28.63%)| Due 10 pile up inventory for upcorng
itores
Trade Recrivable Twmoner  |Revenue from operations Aversge irsde teocivables Times 54.62 96.2¢| (43.25763] Increase an account of higher revenue
Ratio during the vear.
Trac Puyabile Turnevy e Hati [ Total purchases of raw maierial | Average trade payables Times 17€] 2.08 {15 34%}| Not Applicabie
and slocF-in-trade
el Capital Turnover Katio  [Mevenue from Operutions Average wor Fing capital = Times {1.35) (503) 308.41% | Decreased due to increase in Borrowings
Current assets - Current uand lease liability during the year.
liakilities
Met Prufil rutin Laewes fror the yenz Revenae fnom Dperitions Peroentage TN =474 (24 16%)] Not Apphicable
Return on Capilal Employed |Earnings before inlerest and L | Average capatal employed = Percenlage -37% -40% 347%| Not Applicable
Equity + Lease Liabilities +
Borrowings - Deferred tax assets
Average Iotal assets [Perentigo =i3.41% 270% ] Not Applicahle
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51. Significant accounting policies

i.

Financial assets
Classification and initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the asset. The Company determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. The Company classifies the financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

¢ Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through profit or loss, or through other
comprehensive income)
e Those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (excluding trade receivables which do not
contain a significant financing component) at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL):

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets are
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss when the same are managed by the
Company on the basis of their fair value and their performance is evaluated on fair value basis in
accordance with a risk management or investment strategy of the Company. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial

assets is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) if these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains
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or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when

e The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
¢ Retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

When the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset
is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Compan:- applies simplified approach required by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
receivables.

Income recognition - Interest

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to
another entity.

The Company’s financial liabilities includes borrowings, lease liability, trade and other payables.

Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss)
are deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial liability. Financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised.

De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance cost.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the
Company or the counterparty.

Fair value measurements and hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use, or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances, and for which
sufficient data are available to measure the fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy based on its nature, characteristics and risks:

Level 1 - inputs are quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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V.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as other
gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.
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Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to
the Financial Statements.

X. Retirement and other employee benefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense on accrual basis.
(b) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes defined contribution to the Government Employee Provident Fund, which are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, on accrual basis. The Company recognises contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

(c) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related obligation. '

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

(d) Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the
same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as a result of the unused
entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The Company’s liability
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise. The
obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.
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(e) Share based payments

Employees of the Group (Companies forming part of Aditya Birla Group) receive remuneration in the
form of stock appreciation rights for rendering services over a defined vesting period.

For cash-settled share-based payment, a liability is recognised for the goods or services acquired,
measured initially at the fair value of the liability using a binomial method. At the end of each reporting
period until the liability is settled and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liability is re-measured,
with any changes in the fair value recognised in ‘Employee benefits expense’ in the Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year.

Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the exchange rate at the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, remaining unsettled at the end of the
year, are translated at the closing exchange rates prevailing on the Balance Sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or the Statement of Profit and Loss are also
reclassified in OCI or the Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the
cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Taxes

Current tax

The Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date in India.

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deférred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or a liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor the
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset
relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor the taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date, and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss are
recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in OCI or in equity). Current tax and deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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xv. Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM). The Board of Directors of the
Company is identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"), CODM evaluates the performance of the Company based on the single operative segment for the

purpose of allocation resources and evaluating financial performance.
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